
If you are reading this electronically, the Council has saved on printing.  For more 
information on the Modern.gov paperless app, contact Democratic Services

Merton Council
Healthier Communities and 
Older People Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 
Date: 1 September 2021
Time: 7.15 pm
Venue: Council chamber - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden SM4 5DX

AGENDA
Page Number

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of pecuniary interest 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 

4 Impact of Covid-19 in Merton - Presentation to follow 

5 The Development of the Integrated Care System and the 
implications for Merton 

1 - 14

6 Cabinet Member Priorities - Verbal Update 

7 Work Programme 2021-2022 15 - 30

This is a public meeting – members of the public are very welcome to attend.
The meeting room will be open to members of the public from 7.00 p.m.

For more information about the work of this and other overview and scrutiny panels, 
please telephone 020 8545 3390 or e-mail scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, 
visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny

Press enquiries: communications@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3483 or 
4093

Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer

http://www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny
mailto:communications@merton.gov.uk
http://www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer


Public Information
Attendance at meetings
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council.  Seating in the public gallery is 
limited and offered on a first come first served basis.
Audio/Visual recording of meetings
The Council will film meetings held in the Council Chamber for publication on the website.  If 
you would like to film or record any meeting of the Council held in public, please read the 
Council’s policy here or contact democratic.services@merton.gov.uk for more information.
Mobile telephones
Please put your mobile telephone on silent whilst in the meeting.
Access information for the Civic Centre

 Nearest Tube: Morden (Northern Line)
 Nearest train: Morden South, South 

Merton (First Capital Connect)
 Tramlink: Morden Road or Phipps 

Bridge (via Morden Hall Park)
 Bus routes: 80, 93, 118, 154, 157, 163, 

164, 201, 293, 413, 470, K5

Further information can be found here
Meeting access/special requirements
The Civic Centre is accessible to people with special access requirements.  There are 
accessible toilets, lifts to meeting rooms, disabled parking bays and an induction loop system 
for people with hearing difficulties.  For further information, please contact 
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk 
Fire alarm
If the fire alarm sounds, either intermittently or continuously, please leave the building 
immediately by the nearest available fire exit without stopping to collect belongings.  Staff will 
direct you to the exits and fire assembly point.  If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of 
staff will assist you.  The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned.
Electronic agendas, reports and minutes
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be found on our 
website.  To access this, click https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy and 
search for the relevant committee and meeting date.
Agendas can also be viewed online in the Borough’s libraries and on the Mod.gov paperless 
app for iPads, Android and Windows devices.

https://www2.merton.gov.uk/Guidance%20on%20recording%20meetings%20NEW.docx
mailto:
https://www.merton.gov.uk/contact-us/visiting-the-civic-centre
mailto:democratic.services@merton.gov.uk
https://www.merton.gov.uk/council-and-local-democracy


Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel membership

Councillors:
Peter McCabe (Chair)
Janice Howard (Vice-Chair)
Nigel Benbow
Pauline Cowper
Mary Curtin
Helena Dollimore
Jenifer Gould
Linda Kirby
Substitute Members:
Hina Bokhari
Joan Henry
David Chung
Andrew Howard
Oonagh Moulton
Dave Ward

Co-opted Representatives
Diane Griffin (Co-opted member, non-
voting)
Saleem Sheikh (Co-opted member, non-
voting)

Note on declarations of interest
Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of 
the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  For further advice please 
speak with the Managing Director, South London Legal Partnership.

What is Overview and Scrutiny?
Overview and Scrutiny describes the way Merton’s scrutiny councillors hold the Council’s 
Executive (the Cabinet) to account to make sure that they take the right decisions for the Borough. 
Scrutiny panels also carry out reviews of Council services or issues to identify ways the Council 
can improve or develop new policy to meet the needs of local people.  From May 2008, the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission and Panels have been restructured and the Panels renamed to 
reflect the Local Area Agreement strategic themes.

Scrutiny’s work falls into four broad areas:

 Call-in: If three (non-executive) councillors feel that a decision made by the Cabinet is 
inappropriate they can ‘call the decision in’ after it has been made to prevent the decision 
taking immediate effect. They can then interview the Cabinet Member or Council Officers and 
make recommendations to the decision-maker suggesting improvements.

 Policy Reviews: The panels carry out detailed, evidence-based assessments of Council 
services or issues that affect the lives of local people. At the end of the review the panels issue 
a report setting out their findings and recommendations for improvement and present it to 
Cabinet and other partner agencies. During the reviews, panels will gather information, 
evidence and opinions from Council officers, external bodies and organisations and members 
of the public to help them understand the key issues relating to the review topic.

 One-Off Reviews: Panels often want to have a quick, one-off review of a topic and will ask 
Council officers to come and speak to them about a particular service or issue before making 
recommendations to the Cabinet. 

 Scrutiny of Council Documents: Panels also examine key Council documents, such as the 
budget, the Business Plan and the Best Value Performance Plan.

Scrutiny panels need the help of local people, partners and community groups to make sure that 
Merton delivers effective services. If you think there is something that scrutiny should look at, or 
have views on current reviews being carried out by scrutiny, let us know. 

For more information, please contact the Scrutiny Team on 020 8545 3390 or by e-mail on 
scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny

http://www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny


This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Healthier Communities and Older People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Date: September 1st 2021
Wards: ALL

Subject:   Integrated Care System and placed based 
transition work

Recommendations: 
A. The Panel are asked comment and discuss the progress in developing the South 

West London Integrated Care System

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The attached presentation, prepared by NHS colleagues, provides an 
overview of the development of the Integrated Care Partnership in South 
West London and the implications for Merton. The Chief Executive of the 
South West London and St Georges Mental Health Trust and the Locality 
Executive Director for Merton and Wandsworth, South West London Clinical 
Commissioning Group will provide an update of the work as well as respond 
to questions. 

2 DETAILS
2.1. Integrated Care Systems are new partnerships between the organisations 

that meet health and care needs across an area, to coordinate services and 
to plan in a way that improves population health and reduces inequalities 
between different groups.

2.2. This Panel has an important role in overseeing these developments and 
holding all partners to account.

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
can select topics for scrutiny review and for other scrutiny work as it sees fit, 
taking into account views and suggestions from officers, partner 
organisations and the public.   

4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
4.1. The Panel will be consulted at the meeting
5 TIMETABLE
5.1. None relating to this covering report
6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



6.1. None relating to this covering report
7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
7.1. None relating to this covering report. Scrutiny work involves consideration of 

the legal and statutory implications of the topic being scrutinised.
8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS
8.1. It is a fundamental aim of the scrutiny process to ensure that there is full and 

equal access to the democratic process through public involvement and 
engaging with local partners in scrutiny reviews.  Furthermore, the outcomes 
of reviews are intended to benefit all sections of the local community.  

9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
9.1. None relating to this covering report. Scrutiny work involves consideration of 

the crime and disorder implications of the topic being scrutinised.    
10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
10.1. None relating to this covering report
11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 

PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT


12 BACKGROUND PAPERS
12.1.

Page 2



ICS and placed based transition work
Merton Overview and Scrutiny Committee

June 2021

P
age 3



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

Our ICS is 

made up of a 

three parts;  

together we 

are the ICS ….

Our ICS Places

Our ICS Provider 
Collaboratives

Our ICS SWL 
level

South West London ICS 

P
age 4



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

ICS update headlines …

• Place - transition teams in place commencing H&C Plan review and forming together. Resource and support will be

important going forward. (slides in pack summarise)

• Provider Collaboratives – Acute Provider Collaborative and South London Partnership considering the new

expectations collaboratives and how they will develop capabilities and arrangements to achieve them.

• Functional review – CCG functional review underway and building future narrative. Partner conversations planned

for October.

• System Development plan – draft signed off by NHSE London. 6 week listening exercise on future g

• Communications and engagement – stakeholder plan being developed

• OD plan initial thinking conversations with CEOs and Place Leads but more in-depth conversations will be arranged –

current thinking Simulation exercises; Big Tent

• Growing focus on Finance and provider collaboratives

• London ICS Steering Group and Operations Groups established

• National guidance ICS Operating Model; HR process; Collaboratives and expecting more early September

• National Timeframes – there will be a de minimum expectation on ICS development for 1st April 2022

P
age 5



ICS Transition Update
Place based development

P
age 6



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

Place will have four main roles: 

1. To support and develop primary care networks (PCNs) which join up primary and community services across 

local neighbourhoods.

2. To simplify, modernise and join up health and care (including through technology and by joining up primary 

and secondary care where appropriate).

3. To understand and identify – using population health management techniques and other intelligence –

people and families at risk of being left behind and to organise proactive support for them; and 

4. To coordinate the local contribution to health, social and economic development to prevent future risks to 

ill-health within different population groups.

In addition, places are responsible for:

 Ensuring the full involvement of all partners who contribute to health and care in place.

 Putting in place important links with other public or voluntary services that have a big impact on residents’ 

day-today health, such as by improving local skills and employment or by ensuring high-quality housing. 

 Delivery of place plans in partnership with NHS providers, local government, primary care and the voluntary 

sector working together in each place in ICSs, built around primary care networks (PCNs) in neighbourhoods.

P
age 7



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

Each local Transition team have been asked to begin 
to meet and focus on a number of key development 
areas…..

1. Begin work across each local placed based partnership to identify and develop a 6,12- and 18-

month programme to deliver place requirements outlined in the White paper.

2. Reviewing and developing revised Local Health and Care Plans built on locally identified 

priorities and linked to expected national planning guidance. 

3. Set clear expected outcomes for place priorities and actions so that their impact may be 

tracked.

4. Engaging in the Strengthening Communities Programme Group to think through in more detail 

the approach to place-based development, share learning and support the system 

wide development of place-based arrangements

P
age 8



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

Merton Place so far, early days 

• Expanded the transition team to Include, Dr Dagmar Zeuner, Director of Public Health and Simon 

Shimmens, CEO of Merton Connect representing the third and voluntary sector

• Transition team  - developing understanding and trust – 3 face to face and 3 virtual meetings

• Merton Health and Care Together remains the partnership vehicle

• Organisational development needs for partners, sectors and MHCT

• Programme Director recruited, CCG and provider resource

• Stakeholder Engagement and Communication plan

• Desktop update of Merton Local Health and Care – COVID impact and inequalities

• Series of workshops reviewing start well, live well and age well

• 3 primary care network development sessions completed

P
age 9



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

Merton Place transition team – who are we? 

Vanessa Ford, 

CEO, 

SWL&StG

John Morgan, 

Assistant Director 

London Borough of Merton

Dr Dagmar Zeuner, 

Director of Public Health

London Borough of Merton

Dr Sayanthan Ganesaratnam
Lead Medical Director, 

South West London Primary 

Care Provider Alliance

Jennifer Goddard, 

Associate Director

SWL&StG

Suzanne Marsello
Chief Strategy Officer, 

St. George’s University Hospital

Simon Shimmens, 

CEO, 

Merton Connected  

Alison Edgington,

Director of Operations 

CLCH

P
age 10



Background slides

P
age 11



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

ICS Health and Care Partnerships

• ICS Partnerships will be responsible fordeveloping aplanthat addresses thewiderhealth, public healthand

socialcareneedsof the system.

• Members of the ICS Health and Care Partnership can be drawn from Health and Wellbeing Boards within 

the system, partner organisations with an interest in health and care (including Healthwatch, voluntary and 

independent sector partners, social care providers and for example housing providers). 

• Each system will set up its Health and Care Partnership and membership

• Guidance to support the establishment of these partnerships will be developedwithNHSEIandtheLocal

GovernmentAssociation

• All NHS and LA’s will have a duty to collaborate across the healthcare, public health and social care system.

• The ICS will work closely with local Health and Wellbeing Boards- as ‘place-based’ planners, -, the ICS NHS 

Body will be required to have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs)/Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategies

P
age 12



We believe in an inclusive and innovative approach to care. www.swlondon.nhs.uk

The Role of ICS NHS Body

• The ICSNHSbody will be responsible for:

 Strategic planning to meet the health needs of the population and being accountable for the

health outcomes of the population

 The commissioning functions of CCG’s andsomeof thoseofNHS England

 Developingacapital plan for NHS providers

 Securing theprovision of health services tomeet the needs of the system population

• Each ICS NHS body will be directly accountable for NHS spend and performance within the system allocative

functions will be held by the NHS Body. It will be able to delegation place and provider collaboratives

• The ICS NHS body will be responsible for the day to day running of the ICS

• The ICS NHS board will, as a minimum, include a chair, the chief executive and representatives from NHS

trusts, general practice andlocalauthorities, with others determined locally.

• Place-based arrangementswill be left to local organisations toarrange.

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel

Date: September 1st 2021
Wards: All
Subject: Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel Work Programme 2021/22
Lead officer: Stella Akintan, Scrutiny Officer
Lead member: Councillor Peter McCabe, Chair of the Healthier Communities and 

Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Contact officer: Stella Akintan: stella.akintan@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3390

Recommendations: 
That members of the Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel:

i. Consider their work programme for the 2021/22 municipal year, and agree issues 
and items for inclusion (see draft in Appendix 1 and 2);

ii. Consider the methods by which the Panel would like to scrutinise the issues/items 
agreed;

iii. Agree on an issue for scrutiny by a task group and appoint members to the Task 
Group; 

iv. Identify any training and support needs.  

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to support and advise Panel members to determine 

their work programme for the 2021/22 municipal year.
1.2 This report sets out the following information to assist the Panel in this process:

a) The principles of effective scrutiny and the criteria against which work 
programme items should be considered;

b) The roles and responsibilities of the Healthier Communities and Older People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel;

c) The findings of the consultation programme undertaken with councillors and 
co-opted members, Council senior management, voluntary and community 
sector organisations, partner organisations and Merton residents;

d) A summary of discussion by councillors and co-opted members at a topic 
selection workshop held on 7 June 2021; and 

e) Support available to the Healthier Communities and Older People Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel to determine, develop and deliver its 2021/22 work 
programme. 

2. Determining the Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel Annual Work Programme 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

mailto:stella.akintan@merton.gov.uk


2.1 Members are required to determine their work programme for the 2021/22 
municipal year to give focus and structure to scrutiny activity to ensure that it 
effectively and efficiently supports and challenges the decision-making 
processes of the Council, and partner organisations, for the benefit of the people 
of Merton. 

2.2 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel has 
a  specific role relating to public health, health partners, adult social care and 
mental health  scrutiny and to performance monitoring that should automatically 
be built into their work programmes. 

2.3 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel may 
choose to scrutinise a range of issues through a combination of pre-decision 
scrutiny items, policy development, performance monitoring, information 
updates and follow up to previous scrutiny work. 

2.4 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
have six scheduled meetings over the course of 2021/22, including the 
scheduled budget meeting (representing a maximum of 21 hours of scrutiny per 
year – assuming 3 hours per meeting). Members will therefore need to be 
selective in their choice of items for the work programme.

Principles guiding the development of the scrutiny work programme
2.5 The following key principles of effective scrutiny should be considered when the 

Commission determines its work programme:

 Be selective – There is a need to prioritise so that high priority issues are 
scrutinised given the limited number of scheduled meetings and time 
available. Members should consider what can realistically and properly be 
reviewed at each meeting, taking into account the time needed to scrutinise 
each item and what the session is intended to achieve.

 Add value with scrutiny – Items should have the potential to ‘add value’ to 
the work of the council and its partners. If it is not clear what the intended 
outcomes or impact of a review will be then Members should consider if there 
are issues of a higher priority that could be scrutinised instead.

 Be ambitious – The Panel should not shy away from carrying out scrutiny of 
issues that are of local concern, whether or not they are the primary 
responsibility of the council. The Local Government Act 2000 gave local 
authorities the power to do anything to promote economic, social and 
environmental well being of local communities. Subsequent Acts have 
conferred specific powers to scrutinise health services, crime and disorder 
issues and to hold partner organisations to account.

 Be flexible – Members are reminded that there needs to be a degree of 
flexibility in their work programme to respond to unforeseen issues/items for 
consideration/comment during the year and accommodate any 
developmental or additional work that falls within the remit of this Panel. For 
example Members may wish to question officers regarding the declining 
performance of a service or may choose to respond to a Councillor Call for 
Action request.

Page 16



 Think about the timing – Members should ensure that the scrutiny activity is 
timely and that, where appropriate, their findings and recommendations 
inform wider corporate developments or policy development cycles at a time 
when they can have most impact. Members should seek to avoid duplication 
of work carried out elsewhere. 

Models for carrying out scrutiny work
2.6 There are a number of means by which the Healthier Communities and Older 

People Overview and Scrutiny Panel can deliver its work programme. Members 
should consider which of the following options is most appropriate to undertake 
each of the items they have selected for inclusion in the work programme:

Item on a scheduled meeting 
agenda/ hold an extra 
meeting of the Panel

 The Panel can agree to add an item to the agenda 
for a meeting and call Cabinet Members/ 
Officers/Partners to the meeting to respond to 
questioning on the matter 

 A variation of this model could be a one-day seminar- 
scrutiny of issues that, although important, do not 
merit setting up a ‘task-and-finish’ group.

Task Group  A small group of Members meet outside of the 
scheduled meetings to gather information on the 
subject area, visit other local authorities/sites, speak 
to service users, expert witnesses and/or 
Officers/Partners. The Task Group can then report 
back to the Panel with their findings to endorse the 
submission of their recommendations to 
Cabinet/Council

 This is the method usually used to carry out policy 
reviews

The Panel asks for a report 
then takes a view on action

 The Panel may need more information before taking 
a view on whether to carry out a full review so asks 
for a report – either from the service department or 
from the Scrutiny Team – to give them more details.

Meeting with service 
Officer/Partners

 A Member (or small group of Members) has a 
meeting with service officers/Partners to discuss 
concerns or raise queries. 

 If the Member is not satisfied with the outcome or 
believes that the Panel needs to have a more in-
depth review of the matter s/he takes it back to the 
Panel for discussion.

Individual Members doing 
some initial research 

 A member with a specific concern carries out some 
research to gain more information on the matter and 
then brings his/her findings to the attention of the 
Panel if s/he still has concerns.

2.7 Note that, in order to keep agendas to a manageable size, and to focus on items 
to which the Panel can make a direct contribution, the Panel may choose to take 
some “information only” items outside of Panel meetings, for example by email.
Support available for scrutiny activity

2.8 The Overview and Scrutiny function has dedicated scrutiny support from the 
Scrutiny Team to:

Page 17



 Work with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Panel to manage the work 
programme and coordinate the agenda, including advising officers and 
partner organisations on information required and guidance for witnesses 
submitting evidence to a scrutiny review; 

 Provide support for scrutiny members through briefing papers, background 
material, training and development seminars, etc;

 Facilitate and manage the work of the task and finish groups, including 
research, arranging site visits, inviting and briefing witnesses and drafting 
review reports on behalf on the Chair; and

 Promote the scrutiny function across the organisation and externally.
2.9 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel will 

need to assess how it can best utilise the available support from the Scrutiny 
Team to deliver its work programme for 2021/22. 

2.10 The Panel is also invited to comment on any briefing, training and support that is 
needed to enable Members to undertake their work programme.  Members may 
also wish to undertake visits to local services in order to familiarise themselves 
with these. Such visits should be made with the knowledge of the Chair and will 
be organised by the Scrutiny Team.

2.11 The Scrutiny Team will take the Healthier Communities and Older People 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s views on board in developing the support that is 
provided. 

3. Selecting items for the Scrutiny Work Programme
3.1 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel sets 

its own agenda within the scope of its terms of reference.  It has the following 
remit:

 Formal health scrutiny including discharging the Council’s responsibilities in 
respect of the Health and Social Care Act 2001;

 Health including promoting good health and healthy lifestyles, mental health 
and reducing health inequalities;

 Community Care (adult social care and older people’s social care;

 Active ageing

 Scrutiny of the Health and Wellbeing Board
3.1 The Scrutiny Team has undertaken a campaign to gather suggestions for issues 

to scrutinise either as agenda items or task group reviews. Suggestions have 
been received from members of the public, councillors and partner organisations 
including the police, NHS and Merton Voluntary Service Council. Issues that 
have been raised repeatedly at Community Forums have also been included. 
The Scrutiny Team has consulted departmental management teams in order to 
identify forthcoming issues on which the Panel could contribute to the 
policymaking process.

Page 18



3.2 The councillors who attended a “topic selection” workshop on 07 June 2021 
discussed these suggestions. Areas were prioritised at the workshop and a long 
list was identified. Panel members are asked to rank this list to help to develop 
the 2021-22 work programme. These are listed at Appendix 1. Based on the 
feedback from panel members a work programme has been drafted this is 
attached at Appendix 2.

4. Task group reviews
4.1 The Panel is invited to select an issue for in-depth scrutiny and establish a task 

group.
5. Public involvement
5.1 Scrutiny provides extensive opportunities for community involvement and 

democratic accountability. Engagement with service users and with the general 
public can help to improve the quality, legitimacy and long-term viability of 
recommendations made by the Panel.

5.2 Service users and the public bring different perspectives, experiences and 
solutions to scrutiny, particularly if “seldom heard” groups such as young people, 
disabled people, people from black and minority ethnic communities and people 
from lesbian gay bisexual and transgender communities are included.

5.3 This engagement will help the Panel to understand the service user’s 
perspective on individual services and on co-ordination between services. Views 
can be heard directly through written or oral evidence or heard indirectly through 
making use of existing sources of information, for example from surveys. From 
time to time the Panel/Task Group may wish to carry out engagement activities 
of its own, by holding discussion groups or sending questionnaires on particular 
issues of interest.

5.4 Much can be learnt from best practice already developed in Merton and 
elsewhere. The Scrutiny Team will be able to help the Panel to identify the range 
of stakeholders from which it may wish to seek views and the best way to 
engage with particular groups within the community.

6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
6.1 A number of issues highlighted in this report recommend that Panel members 

take into account certain considerations when setting their work programme for 
2021/22. The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel is free to determine its work programme as it sees fit. Members may 
therefore choose to identify a work programme that does not take into account 
these considerations. This is not advised as ignoring the issues raised would 
either conflict with good practice and/or principles endorsed in the Review of 
Scrutiny, or could mean that adequate support would not be available to carry 
out the work identified for the work programme.

6.2 A range of suggestions from the public, partner organisations, officers and 
Members for inclusion in the scrutiny work programme are set out in the 
appendices, together with a suggested approach to determining which to include 
in the work programme. Members may choose to respond differently. However, 
in doing so, Members should be clear about expected outcomes, how realistic 
expectations are and the impact of their decision on their wider work programme 
and support time. Members are also free to incorporate into their work 
programme any other issues they think should be subject to scrutiny over the 
course of the year, with the same considerations in mind.

Page 19



7. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED
7.1 To assist Members to identify priorities for inclusion in the Panel’s work 

programme, the Scrutiny Team has undertaken a campaign to gather 
suggestions for possible scrutiny reviews from a number of sources:
a. Members of the public have been approached using the following tools: 

articles in the local press, My Merton and Merton Together, request for 
suggestions from all councillors and co-opted members, letter to partner 
organisations and to a range of local voluntary and community organisations, 
including those involved in the Inter-Faith Forum and members of the 
Lesbian Gay and Transgender Forum;

b. Councillors have put forward suggestions by raising issues in scrutiny 
meetings, via the Overview and Scrutiny Member Survey 2020, and by 
contacting the Scrutiny Team direct; and 

c. Officers have been consulted via discussion at departmental management 
team meetings.

8. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are none specific to this report.  Scrutiny work involves consideration of 

the financial, resource and property issues relating to the topic being scrutinised. 
Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess the implications of any 
recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific financial, resource and 
property implications.

9. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Overview and scrutiny bodies operate within the provisions set out in the Local 

Government Act 2000, the Health and Social Care Act 2001& 2012 and the 
Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

9.2 Scrutiny work involves consideration of the legal and statutory issues relating to 
the topic being scrutinised. Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess 
the implications of any recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific 
legal and statutory implications.

10. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS

10.1 It is a fundamental aim of the scrutiny process to ensure that there is full and 
equal access to the democratic process through public involvement and 
engagement. The reviews will involve work to consult local residents, community 
and voluntary sector groups, businesses, hard to reach groups, partner 
organisations etc and the views gathered will be fed into the review.

10.2 Scrutiny work involves consideration of the human rights, equalities and 
community cohesion issues relating to the topic being scrutinised. Furthermore, 
scrutiny work will also need to assess the implications of any recommendations 
made to Cabinet, including specific human rights, equalities and community 
cohesion implications.

Page 20



11. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
11.1 In line with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the Police 

and Justice Act 2006, all Council departments must have regard to the impact of 
services on crime, including anti-social behaviour and drugs.  Scrutiny review 
reports will therefore highlight any implications arising from the reviews relating 
to crime and disorder as necessary.    

12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
12.1 There are none specific to this report.  Scrutiny work involves consideration of 

the risk management and health and safety issues relating to the topic being 
scrutinised. Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess the implications 
of any recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific risk management 
and health and safety implications.

13. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT

13.1 Appendix I – Long list of potential agendas items discussed at the topics 
workshop

13.2 Appendix 2 – Draft Work Programme

14. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
14.1 None 

Page 21



Appendix 1

Health and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Topic suggestions 2021/22

The Long list of topics agreed at the workshop are as follows:

1. COVID-19 

 Understanding residents experience of services during, and lessons learnt from, the 
pandemic response including:

a. Care homes
b. Maternity services
c. Hospital admissions 

 Understanding the current position of local immunisation rates and screening 
services as a result of the pandemic

2. Progress with the Wilson Health & Wellbeing Campus
Reviewing the current position of this development which has been ongoing for some 
considerable time.  The review would also allow a clearer understanding of proposed 
future plans; the current financial position as well as any future commitments.  

3. Dentistry in Merton
The Panel would consider the current levels of NHS provision in the borough versus 
private spaces. It would also review sign up rates and future provision planning.

4. Scrutiny of the Integrated Care System
To develop an understanding of the reconfiguration of the six Clinical 
Commissioning Groups into the newly formed Integrated Care System and its 
impact on local services for Merton.  Providing panel members with a clear 
understanding of the approach being taken, the meaning of ‘place’ and future 
delivery projections particularly around:

 governance – what is the relationship with Merton’s Health and Wellbeing Board
 finances – ensuring the Merton £ is protected and invested locally

5. Review of Lunch Clubs in Merton / VCS / Social Prescribing
To scrutinise the report being published by Merton Connected on the current position of 
Lunch Clubs in Merton, following the pandemic.  This report could be considered as 
part of a wider understanding of the state of the voluntary sector post COVID and its 
capacity to support the social prescribing model in Merton. 

6. Future of Adult Social Care
To scrutinise the awaited green paper on the future of adult social care with a focus on 
time allocations and community based approaches.  Also relevant to the Integrated 

Page 22



Care System (ICS) review (above). 

7. Review of the new public health system
To understand the reconfigured public health system from 1st October 2021 – following 
the disbanding of Public Health England. Emphasis on understanding the new structure 
and how they will be held to account locally.

Standard agenda items:

 Immunisations schedule:  including diabetic eye screening, breast cancer, flu for the 
older 65s and vulnerable groups. 

 Safeguarding Adults Annual Report
 Primary Care Strategy - South West London Clinical Commissioning Group
 Public Health Annual Report
 Updates from local Health Providers

It is unlikely there will be enough Panel time to consider all the above issues, therefore 
Panel members have been asked to rank them according to priority in order that a short 
list can be developed. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Healthier Communities and Older People Work 
Programme 2021/22

This table sets out the draft Healthier Communities and Older People Panel Work Programme for 2021/22.  This Work Programme 
will be considered at every meeting of the Panel to enable it to respond to issues of concern and incorporate reviews or to comment 
upon pre-decision items ahead of their consideration by Cabinet/Council.

The work programme table shows items on a meeting by meeting basis, identifying the issue under review, the nature of the 
scrutiny (pre decision, policy development, issue specific, performance monitoring, partnership related) and the intended outcomes.
The last page provides information on items on the Council’s Forward Plan that relate to the portfolio of the Healthier Communities 
and Older People Panel so that these can be added to the work programme should the Panel wish to.

Scrutiny Support

For further information on the work programme of the Healthier Communities and Older People please contact: -
Stella Akintan (Scrutiny Officer)
Tel: 020 8545 3390; Email: stella.akintan@merton.gov.uk

For more information about overview and scrutiny at LB Merton, please visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny

Meeting date 1st September 2021

P
age 25

mailto:stella.akintan@merton.gov.uk


2

Scrutiny category Item/Issue How Lead Member/
Lead Officer

Intended Outcomes

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Presentation to the 
Panel

Julia Groom, Consultant 
in Public Health.

Review and comment 
on the latest data on the 
rates of  Covid-19 and 
the impact on services

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

The development of the 
integrated care system 
and the implications for 
Merton. 

Presentation to the 
Panel

Vanessa Ford, Chief 
Executive South West 
London Mental Health 
Trust

Mark Creelman, 
Locality Executive 
Director - Merton and 
Wandsworth. NHS South 
West London Clinical 
Commissioning Group

To develop an 
understanding of the 
reconfiguration of the six 
Clinical Commissioning 
Groups into the Integrated 
Care System and its impact 
on local services.  To 
understand approach being 
taken, the meaning of ‘place’ 
and future delivery 
projections particularly 
around:
governance – what is the 
relationship with Merton’s 
Health and Wellbeing Board
finances – ensuring the 
Merton pound is protected 
and invested locally

Holding the Executive 
to account

Cabinet Member 
Priorities 

Verbal update Councillor Rebecca 
Lanning, Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social 
Care and Public Health

Review Cabinet 
Member priorities and 
key projects for the year 
ahead

Work Programme Work Programme 2021-
2022

Report to the Panel Cllr Peter McCabe, 
Healthier Communities 
and Older People Panel 
Chair

To review the topics this 
Panel will consider in 
2021-22

Meeting Date 2 November 2021 - BUDGET

P
age 26



3

Scrutiny category Item/Issue How Lead Member/Lead 
Officer

Intended Outcomes

Budget Scrutiny Budget and Business 
Plan 2021-2022

Report to the Panel Caroline Holland, 
Director of Corporate 
Resources

Scrutinise the budget 
and any send 
comments to the 
Commission. 

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Report to the Panel Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public Health

Review and comment 
on the latest data on the 
rates of  Covid-19 and 
the impact on services

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

Primary care –overview 
of access, GP Survey, 
GP Workforce

Report to the Panel Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Presentation to the 
Panel

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

Service to support 
people with Long Covid

Report to the Panel NHS South West London 
Clinical Commissioning 
Group

To consider range of 
services and resources 
allocated to tackle Long 
Covid

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

The new Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment 
(JSNA)

Report to the Panel Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public Health

To review the Merton 
approach to developing 
the new JSNA

Work Programme Work Programme 2021-
2022

Report to the Panel Cllr Peter McCabe, 
Healthier Communities 
and Older People Panel 
Chair

To review the topics this 
Panel will consider in 
2021-22

Meeting date – 10 January 2022 - BUDGET

P
age 27



4

Scrutiny category Item/Issue How Lead Member/
Lead Officer

Intended Outcomes

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Presentation to the 
Panel

Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public 
Health

Review and comment 
on the latest data on the 
rates of  Covid-19 and 
the impact on services

Budget Scrutiny Budget and Business 
Plan 2021-2022

Report to the Panel Caroline Holland, 
Director of Corporate 
Resources

Scrutinise the budget 
and any send 
comments to the 
Commission. 

Scrutiny of Adult Social 
Care

Safeguarding Adults 
Annual Report

Report to the Panel Aileen Buckton, Chair 
Merton Adults 
Safeguarding Board

Review the work taking 
place to safeguard 
vulnerable adults in 
Merton

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

Progress with the 
Wilson Health & 
Wellbeing Campus

Report to the Panel Reviewing the current 
position, clearer 
understanding of 
proposed future plans 
including the financial 
position and future 
commitments.  

Work Programme Work Programme 2021-
2022

Report to the Panel Cllr Peter McCabe, 
Healthier Communities 
and Older People Panel 
Chair

To review the topics this 
Panel will consider in 
2021-22

Meeting Date – 8 February 2022

P
age 28



5

Scrutiny category Item/Issue How Lead Member/Lead 
Officer

Intended Outcomes

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Presentation to the 
Panel

Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public Health

Review and comment 
on the latest data on the 
rates of  Covid-19 and 
the impact on services

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

Immunisations 
schedule:  including 
diabetic eye screening, 
breast cancer, flu for the 
over 65s and vulnerable 
groups. 

Report to the Panel NHS England Understanding the 
current position of local 
immunisation rates and 
screening services as a 
result of the pandemic

Scrutiny of Health 
Partners

Review of Lunch Clubs 
in Merton

Report to the Panel Simon Shimmens, Chief 
Executive, Merton 
Connected

To scrutinise the report 
being published by Merton 
Connected on the current 
position of Lunch Clubs in 
Merton, following the 
pandemic.  This report 
could be considered as 
part of a wider 
understanding of the state 
of the voluntary sector 
post COVID and its 
capacity to support the 
social prescribing model 
in Merton. 

Work Programme Work Programme 2021-
2022

Report to the Panel Cllr Peter McCabe, 
Healthier Communities 
and Older People Panel 
Chair

To review the topics this 
Panel will consider in 
2021-22

P
age 29



6

Meeting date – 14 March 2022

 
Scrutiny category Item/Issue How Lead Member/Lead 

Officer
Intended Outcomes

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Impact of COVID-19 in 
Merton

Presentation to the 
Panel

Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public Health

Review and comment 
on the latest data on the 
rates of  Covid-19 and 
the impact on services

Scrutiny of Public 
Health

Health and Wellbeing 
Board - Annual report

Report to the Panel Dagmar Zeuner, 
Director of Public Health

To review the work of 
the Health and 
Wellbeing BoardP

age 30


	Agenda
	5 The Development of the Integrated Care System and the implications for Merton
	OSC ICS Update September 2021

	7 Work Programme 2021-2022
	HCOP Work Programme  2021-22


